
 

- 1 - 

Meeting Summary for April 17, 2013 
 
Members  
Sandy Zebal 
Karen Leatherwood 
Josh Hatkin, Chair 
Kim Petry 
Chris Spaur 
 

Other Attendees 
Ellen Cutsail 
 

County Government 
Brenda Dinne, Special Projects Coordinator 
Kim Dubbert, Recording Secretary 
 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER –  
Mr. Josh Hatkin, Chair, officially called the April 17, 2013, meeting to order at 3:02 p.m. in the 
Reagan Room (003) of the County Office Building.   
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Motion 176-13:  Motion was made by Sandy Zebal and seconded by 
Kim Petry to approve the March 20, 2013, minutes as amended with the changes indicated by 
Kim Petry. Motion carried. 
 
CHAIR & COMMITTEE REPORTS – 
a. SOLAR ARRAY SUBCOMMITTEE:  Ms. Petry shared that the subcommittee was looking at the 

issue of allowing solar arrays or “farms” and what requirements should be included in the 
zoning code.  This applies not to residential uses, but to uses where the specific purpose is 
to sell electricity back to the grid.  They have been given ordinances from several other 
jurisdictions to review.  At their April 17 subcommittee meeting, Mr. George Brown of TCS 
Construction was scheduled to present on Howard County’s code modifications and 
progress on the Nixon farm property.  

b. STORMWATER FEE ADVISORY GROUP:  Ms. Zebal indicated that the Group reached a 
consensus at the last meeting on what to base the rate structure, which is average 
impervious area.  She explained that the residential uses would be placed in tiers based on 
the amount of impervious area.  The average impervious area would fall within the middle 
tier.  She mentioned that staff is working on putting together what this scenario would look 
like, with the intention that all costs would be covered.  Ms. Dinne commented that it is a 
very preliminary structure at this point.  She clarified that the Advisory Group is basing their 



 

- 2 - 

work on the assumption that all costs would be covered, including the stormwater permit 
compliance work as well as the Bay Total Maximum Daily Loads.  However, she explained 
that the costs within each cost type, such as operations and maintenance, inspections, etc., 
would be provided to the Board, which would allow them to adjust as they see fit.  The 
actual rate and what is covered would be decided by the Board.   
 
Mr. Spaur mentioned he is very uncomfortable with paying the same amount for roads that 
are used by very few people because they are in rural subdivisions.  Where he lives, a lot 
more people use the roads, so you are getting more use for less cost.  He thinks the benefit 
to citizens is disproportionate. He did not like the idea of charging people in older areas for 
what needs to be done when the rules [laws] have changed since then.  Ms. Zebal asked 
him to clarify what he was uncomfortable with.  Mr. Spaur explained that he thought she 
meant that older areas would be charged more.  Ms. Zebal clarified that the charge would 
be based on the amount of impervious surface. Ms. Dinne responded that it will be based 
on the impervious area.  Ms. Petry asked how that information would be obtained.  Ms. 
Dinne indicated that the County already has impervious areas mapped because it is data 
needed for compliance with our federal stormwater permit.  Ms. Zebal also clarified that 
the basis is how much impervious surface you have regardless of the size of your lot.  Mr. 
Spaur said to take away everything he said if that’s the case.  He agrees with that approach 
and would not agree with an approach using a percentage of impervious. 
 
Ms. Petry asked if the group is considering what happens to the money that was already set 
aside to fund the stormwater program.  Ms. Dinne replied that the Advisory Group is tasked 
with evaluating a rate structure.  It would be the Commissioners’ decision whether they 
fully fund the program through the fee or they only fund certain components through the 
fee.  Ms. Petry asked if the fee would be higher because the funds already budgeted 
wouldn’t be used.  Ms. Dinne replied that the Board could consider using some of the 
current budgeted [general revenue] funds to help pay for the costs, thereby lowering the 
fee that property owners would have to pay.   
 
Ms. Cutsail, in the audience, asked if the Group would take into consideration things that 
people are already doing on their property to mitigate stormwater.  Ms. Dinne explained 
that the law requires some method for reducing fees for measures already in place be 
included as part of the program.  She went onto explain that this is the one piece of the 
program that has to be approved by Maryland Department of the Environment.  She also 
said that it is more complicated than it sounds.  As an example, she described a situation 
where 50,000 homes say they have a rain barrel.  If the County had to have staff to go out 
and verify, possibly each year, that every one of those houses still had that rain barrel, it 
would add a significant amount to the administrative costs.  Mr. Spaur added that it would 
also need to be verified that it is actually functioning as intended, adding a huge 
administrative burden.  Ms. Dinne said the staff is working on how the fee reduction 
method could work because the rate structure alone is a huge piece for the Advisory Group 
to get through in the time that we have.  Ms. Petry asked that staff share the credits 
method with the EAC when it’s ready.  Mr. Spaur indicated that there are certain services 
and facilities that provide a general benefit to everyone, no matter how you actually use 



 

- 3 - 

them, such as schools and libraries.  Ms. Dinne indicated that none of the other jurisdictions 
are proposing more than a 50 percent reduction in the fee for that reason.  Parks, County 
buildings, etc., provide a general benefit to the public and still need to have their 
stormwater addressed. 
 
Ms. Petry asked if the fee was just for residents, and Ms. Dinne responded no, it is for 
everyone – businesses and residents.  Ms. Zebal commented on the Advisory Group wanted 
to exempt the agricultural portion of farms that have an approved [by Soil Conservation 
District] Soil Conservation Plan.  She said the Group recommended that only the residential 
portion of the property would be subject to the fee.  Ms. Dinne confirmed that the 
residential structures would not include the barns.   
 
Ms. Zebal mentioned the next Stormwater Fee Advisory Group meeting will be on May 2, 
2013.  

 
TREE COMMISSION –  
Nothing to report.  

 
STAFF LIASION REPORT –  
a. Ms. Dinne has not heard anything on new members for the EAC.  Ms. Leatherwood 

mentioned that, when she talked to Commissioner Shoemaker, it seemed like the topic 
hasn’t even been discussed.  Ms. Zebal recommended sending a letter to Steve Powell, and 
Ms. Dinne suggested copying to Ms. Windham on the letter or e-mail.   

 
OLD BUSINESS – 
a. REVISIONS TO BYLAWS:  Ms. Dinne and Mr. Hatkin went to the Commissioners on April 11th, 

2013, with the revisions the EAC adopted in February.  The Commissioners approved the 
revisions with one change.  They requested that the Secretary for the EAC be specified as a 
designee of the Department of Land Use, Planning and Development or its successor.  Ms. 
Dinne indicated the bylaws were back on the agenda to be re-adopted by the EAC because 
of this amendment.  The Board could just sign the bylaws if the EAC adopted them with the 
amendment.   

 
APPROVAL OF BYLAWS – Motion 177-13:  Motion was made by Karen Leatherwood and 
seconded by Kim Petry to approve the Bylaws with the amended change.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS –  
a. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE:  Ms. Dinne mentioned that the only bill of the ones she reported on 

at the March meeting that went through was House Bill 1440 – Compost Facilities.   
 
Ms. Dinne mentioned that one of our delegates submitted a bill to exempt counties that are 
already handling stormwater.  That bill failed, as did the other attempts to soften the 
requirements of that law.  Therefore, there are no changes to the original requirements.  
She also mentioned she has been getting a lot of phone calls from homeowners.   

 



 

- 4 - 

OTHER –  
None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS –  
None 
 
ADJOURNMENT - MOTION NO. 178-13:  Motion made by Karen Leatherwood and seconded by 
Kim Petry to adjourn the April meeting.  Motion carried.  

    
The meeting adjourned at 3:35 pm.  The next regular monthly meeting is scheduled for 
Wednesday, May 15, 2013, at 3:00 p.m. in Reagan Room (003) of the County Office Building. 
 
 


